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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE
The: Northern Pacific Railway depot is a 3-part design consisting of a 2- story central
_ block measuring-44 by 36 feet, and east and west l-story wings which are 51% by 33 feet and
- 61% by 33 feet, respectively. The center facade is flanked by towers 13 feet square,
originally domed and crowned by louvered cupolas with bellcast roofs and finials. The
- four corner pilasters of the towers were capped in a manner identical to the roof treatment
~ of the cupolas. The superstructures of the towers (domed roofs, cupolas, and corner caps)
- were removed in 1954 and replaced by simple peaked tile roofs, producing the effect of
- Tuscan campaniles. On the four faces of both towers and in the apexes of the front and
- rear gables of the central block are plaques bearing the Northern Pacific Railway
- emblem, or Great Monad, in terracotta. The symbol is of Chinese origin, its connected
~ spirals representing unity, or the joining of the material (feminine) and the spiritual
- (masculine) fundamental principles. The main entrance of the depot is recessed between
- the towers within a 1-story portico featuring six concrete Tuscan columns; they are two
- feet in diameter at the base and eighteen inches at the top. In the corresponding
- position on the rear (south) elevation is a sem1hexagona1 window which 1ights the agent's
office inside and which originally provided a view of the semaphore mounted on a concrete
Tuscan p111ar near the tracks.

) The east and west portions of the depot repeat the shaped gable ends of the: central

- block, but with their longitudinal axes placed at right angles to it. The wings originally:
~ terminated in20-foot square shelters or covered platforms with open arches, but that on

~ the west was remodeled into a new express office in 1930 and the east end was enclosed in
- 1955.  The former shelter arches were filled with doors, windows, or concrete, a scheme

- consistent with the original arch system comprising the wing walls. The triangular-

- patterned wooden muntins in the curve of the arches were also repeated.. The foundations
~“of the depot are concrete, and the exterior concrete walls are faced with chips from
~marble once intended for use in the Minnesota State Capitol. After the concrete-marble

- mixture was placed in forms for the depot walls and dried, particles of sand and cement
~were removed from the surface with a wire brush, leaving a stucco-like finish produced by
the coarser marb]e. The original roofing of the building was red Ludowic tiles, which
were replaced in-1954 during the tower alterations already noted. Roof boards were also
—rrepa1red and | covered with felt lapping sheets, and new copper flashing laid.

- As des1gned the first floor of the central block of the depot contained cherry—
,trimmed ticket and trainmen's offices on the south side, separated by a corridor from
“men's and women's Tounges on the north. The "elegance and artistic finish" of the
women's 1ounge made it the finest room in the building at the time (although strictly
~utilitarian in its present décor):

It is 17 feet square, floor of mosaic, walls of zenith done in stipple

and tinted a rich green. The d1v1d1ng Tine between walls and floor '

is a narrow strip of black. It is lighted by two large windows hung

w1th curtains, and a handsome four 1ight chandelier furnishes electric:
1ighting. The floor is covered with aTurkish rug, the room provided

with massive bog oak table and sofa, pier glass, and easy chairs. A lavatory
and toilet adjoins, finished in white marbel with silver trimmings. ("New
Depot is Completed," Bismarck Weekly. Tribune, December 6, 1901, p.1.)
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The stairway to the second floor of the main block is in the southwest corner
and is a quarter-turn with landing. It features molded strings and tread ends, and
a gooseneck handrail atop balusters slightly bulbous but being replaced gradually
by straighter, slenderer members. The second floor remains unfinished except for
plastered ceiling and stair partition and is used for storing records of the successive
occupants of the building: Northern Pacific, Burlington Northern, and Amtrak. There are
nosquare corners in the middle block, each one being convex or concave, a distinction
which reinforces the building's simulation of a Spanish or adobe-type construction.
Other expressions of the theme include the thick, slab-Tike shelves of the ticket
windows; the inclined base moldings on interior and exterior walls, suggesting battering;
the towers, roof tiles, and arches; and the texture and tone of the building fabric
itself.

The east wing contains the 30 by 50-foot main waiting room, which originally
featured colored terrazzo floor and walls; plaster and mosaic frieze; gilt radiators
set on wall brackets; and drinking fountain with silver mug on a wall chain. The
room is plainly finished today except for a cast iron ventilator grille in the center
of the cove ceiling and a deep molded frieze around the walls. Four art deco Tighting
fixtures (aluminum canisters with fluorescent tubes) are suspended from the ceiling,
and doors have sheet brass kick plates studded with brass round-headed nails in the
outline of the Great Monad. 1In the west end of the depot are the express and baggage
rooms, the latter being equipped with floor scales on which hand trucks can be weighed.
Extensive plumbing and electrical repairs were undertaken throughout the building in ‘
1967, when a gas-fired boiler was installed. ’

The depot was originally surrounded by 10-foot wide abutting walks of cement tile
which on the south joined a 600-foot long cement walk beside the tracks. A driveway
of vitrified brick formed a semicircle in front of the building, connecting Fourth
Street on the west and Fifth Street on the east. Post and rail fencing enclosed the
grounds, which were planted in grass and trees and at the southeast corner of which
stood two Tuscan columns supporting an enameled and wrought iron sign reading
Bismarck. These amenities have disappeared over the years, culminating in the con-
version of the landscaped expanse which fronted the depot into a paved commercial
parking lot. In view of current demands by downtown merchants for increased parking
facilities, there seems little Tikelihood that the depot grounds will be restored;
however, there does exist some support for improving the parking area with fencing
and plantings.
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The work of the nationally prominent architectural firm of Charles Reed and Allan
~Stem of St. Paul, the Northern Pacific Railway depot in Bismarck is notable for its
-Spanish mission- sty]e architecture, a familiar mode in the Southwest and California

but uncommon in the northern plains. At the time of construction, the quality of the
depot design enhanced the popular image of the foremost rail transportation system

in North Dakota, one which had reached Bismarck from the East in 1873 and which, on
~completion a decade later, had linked the state to the west coast. The depot occupies
hlock 10 of the original plat of the city of Bismarck, its predecessor on the site

‘being the 1877 Sheridan House, leading hotel in 19th-century Bismarck and the largest
building, when erected, in Dakota Territory. The Sheridan served as both hotel and

-railway passenger depot, and when it was decided to build the present depot, the hotel
was moved east across Fifth Street, remodeled, and opened as the Northwest Hotel.

- On the next block west of biock 10 there had been a frame freight depot dating from the -
1870's but it was destroyed in the fire of August 8, 1898, which leveled much of
downtown Bismarck. The Bismarck Daily Tribune of August 13, 1898 ("New Depot,"
p. 1), carried the following notice from the St. Paul Globe:

The Northern Pacific Railway company will immediately begin the
construction of a new depot and office building in Bismarck, N.D., to
replace those wnich were destroyed by fire Monday morning. General
manager Kendrick and other officials of the road were in consultation
with architects yesterday, making plans for the new buildings. The
company does an immense business at Bismarck and it requires ample
facilities.

It is the company's intention to erect at Bismarck one of the
finest depots and freight offices on its system, and one that will be
all that the people of that city can desire from an architectural stand-
point. As rap1d1y as poss1b]e the plans will be perfected and no time
will be lost in commencing work.

Begun in September, 1900, and completed in December, 1901, at a cost of $33,601,
the depot attracted public attention from the start. Its opening was hailed in a .
“page one story of the December 6, 1901, Bismarck Weekly Tribune, which emphasized
both the novelty of the design and the caliber of its execution. A few years after-
ward, a publication endorsed by the Bismarck Commercial Club (forerunner of the Chamber
of Commerce) boasted that "The Northern Pacific depot at Bismarck is noted for its '
unique beauty and is one of the notable sights pointed out to passengers on passing
trains by the trainmen, the trains being held for a few moments that those who wish

‘may inspect it" W.F. Cushing, 1906).

(G1impses of Bismarck. Bismarck:
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Ten years later, in 1916, the depot was serving a total of 24 passenger
trains which arrived at and departed the capital city daily. By midcentury,
however, Bismarck began to reflect the nationwide decline of railroads generated
by competition from vehicular transportation. In 1970 the Northern Pacific
merged with four other lines to become the Burlington Northern. The identity
of the company which had brought the railroad to Bismarck was further diminished
by the coming of the Amtrak system which utilizes former Northern Pacific trackage
and leases the depot from Burlington Northern. The freight office of the latter,
which had been in the east end of the building, was transferred in 1972 to the
depot at Mandan, seven miles west. The Railway Express Agency vacated its quarters
in the west end of the Bismarck depot following a declaration of bankruptcy in
1975. At present Amtrak is the sole occupant, a practice which will presumably
continue in effect as long as the depot is utilized for passenger train service.

A request by Greyhound Bus Lines to rent the former freight office was denied
in accordance with the policy.

The fate of the depot has become a concern of the Bismarck-Mandan Historical and
‘Genealogical Society, which is promoting the preservation of the building as
a historic site. If in the future it ceases to be used by Amtrak, the Downtown
Business and Professional Association is also proposing a mixed commercial/cultural
role for the depot, including visitor information center, coffee shop, art gallery,
and museum. .



